
RANCHO PAUMA MUTUAL WATER COMPANY ("RPMWC")  

MINUTES OF THE  

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

HELD June 17, 2024 

 

 

Directors Present: Chuck Bandy, Laurie Kariya, Bruce Knox, Linda Shoaff and Scott Shinner   

Directors Absent: None 

Also Present: Shareholder Charles Mathews, Administrative Manager Amber Watkins, and Office and 

Compliance Manager Kim Alvarado  

1. Call to Order: Meeting was called to order at 2:02 p.m.by President Bandy. This meeting was held in person and 

via Zoom.        

 

2. Shareholder Comments: Mathews noted the decline in cash and questioned how the board was planning to not 

only replenish the funds from last year which ended at a loss, but also the projected loss for this current year. 

Mathews noted that water is sold to certain shareholders at less than the cost of production. Knox noted that this 

discussion is set for later in this meeting (agenda item 5) and asked Mathews to continue his comments at that 

time. Mathews agreed to continue his comments during that agenda item.                            

3.  Approval of Previous Minutes  

a.  Minutes of May 20, 2024 - Regular Meeting: Upon a motion by Kariya, seconded by Knox, the minutes of 

the Regular Meeting held on May 20, 2024, were approved as presented by unanimous vote.  

 

4. Administrative Manager’s Report: Watkins gave an update on the reservoir tanks safety and compliance 

upgrades project that was approved at the May meeting. Watkins noted that the parts are still in fabrication, and 

that once completed a start date will be provided by the contractor. Watkins noted that the annual Air Pollution 

Control District (“APCD”) generator inspection was completed via telephone, the inspector noted that RPMWC 

has been in compliance and felt that the phone interview would be sufficient to conduct the annual inspection. 

Watkins provided a copy of the newly created door hanger that utility will place at a shareholder’s property when 

the water service needs to be shut off for an emergency repair. Watkins also noted that the door hanger may also 

be utilized during a planned repair if the administrative staff are unable to reach the property owner prior to the 

repair. Bandy questioned when utility staff would place the door hanger in an emergency repair. Watkins noted 

that as soon as utility assesses the water issue and determines which property addresses will be affected, a door 

hanger would then be placed with an estimated restoration time. Knox asked that utility knock on the 

shareholder’s door and if no answer then place the door hanger. Knox also added that he recently received a 

compliment from shareholder Bill Schultz regarding the efficient handling of a water leak at his property by 

utility employee Mateo Sinohui. Watkins noted at the May meeting, Ruben Bentancourt reported concerns of 

sand in the Pauma Band of Mission Indians irrigation system. Watkins has been in contact with Bentancourt to 

gather additional information and reported that she and Pape are investigating the report. Watkins has asked 

utility staff to regularly check on the pressure from the company side and to increase the frequency of the old 

Well 35 screen maintenance to weekly. Watkins and Utility Supervisor Ferrara are in constant communication 

with Bentancourt. Watkins gave an update on the two properties located near the reservoir tanks, noting that one 

of the property owners has reached out to request a meeting with Bandy and Pape to discuss the private water 

system design and upgrades nearly completed at their property. Watkins confirmed that the meeting is scheduled 

for next Monday morning. Watkins further noted that Pape is still working to identify a submeter to measure the 

kilowatt hours delivered to the private booster station for the two property owners. Watkins reminded that 

RPMWC has recently transferred the ownership of the SDG&E account for the reservoir tank lot electrical service 

from the Pauma Valley Community Services District (“PVCSD”). Bandy noted the goal is to identify the actual 

metered amount used.                                                                                                                 

 

a. Operations Report: Watkins reported that Hydrocurrent was on site to determine the cause for electrical 

issues at both Well 36 and Well 38. The two well repairs were completed and both wells are back online. Watkins 

noted that utility staff have been organizing and cleaning the utility shop area, which unveiled to utility staff that 

two larger pieces of equipment were not operational. These pieces were sent for repair and a maintenance plan is 

now in place to extend the life on these items. Watkins also noted that utility worker Mateo Sinohui has taken 

the lead on the organization of supplies, parts by material and size to help outline the inventory for record keeping. 

Watkins reported that since the last Board meeting, utility staff have had five after hours calls for leaks, four of 

the leaks were confirmed to be on the customer’s side and one leak was confirmed to be a service leak on the 



Rancho Pauma MWC 

Board Meeting Minutes 

June 17, 2024 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

company’s side near the Pauma Valley Country Club (“PVCC”) Bunker. Watkins coordinated the repair work to 

be completed on a day when the PVCC was closed for maintenance. Watkins noted that Utility Supervisor Eddie 

Ferrara did a great job completing the repair. Watkins further noted that utility staff removed the pavers covering 

the area for the repair and once the repair was completed, there was a bit of confusion as to who was responsible 

for the pavers to be put back into place. Watkins explained that in February this same area was repaired and 

PVCC staff placed the pavers back into place after utility staff completed the repair, but on this most recent repair 

RPMWC was asked to put the pavers back into place. Watkins suggested that the Board consider a Memorandum 

of Understanding with the PVCC to identify who is responsible for replacing items within RPMWC easements. 

Watkins took a moment to remind the Board that RPMWC has a high-pressure main pipeline that runs through 

the paver walkway and under the Bunker, during the remodel PVCC agreed to relocate the pipeline but after bids 

were received PVCC suggested adding valves instead and to indemnify RPMWC from any damages in the event 

of a rupture of the pipeline. After a brief discussion, Bandy suggested that RPMWC host a meeting with Chief 

Executive Officer of Pacific Golf Management Larry Taylor, General Manager of PVCC Scott Shinner and 

Dudek Consultant Jeff Pape to further discuss.      

b. Account Totals: Watkins presented the Board with the May Account Totals, with a total revenue for May of 

$123,573. Watkins reported that there were 72,705 units of water sold in May. Watkins also noted that May is 

the second positive revenue month this year.     

c. Water Report: Watkins presented the May slippage report that indicated a year to date water loss of .96%. 

Watkins noted that a majority of the slippage was caused by the emergency repair on Wiskon Way East and the 

Well 42 flushing required for testing and installation of the flush extension. Knox discussed his current water 

usage and asked Bandy about his current usage. Bandy noted that McMillan Farm Management is on track to hit 

tier II in June (a month sooner than last year), which is roughly $34,000 increase in revenue for RPMWC.                

5.          Financials 

              a. B/S, R&E, 2-year Comparison as of May 31, 2024: Watkins presented the financial report for May for 

review, noting that two of the Certificate of Deposit accounts have recently been rolled over to a new maturity 

term with a reduced balance back to the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limit. Watkins noted that the 

PVCSD shared building expense for May has not yet been settled. Watkins reported a cash total of $1,283,689 

for May. Watkins noted the Accounts Receivable of $136,561, the Accounts Payable at $16,639 and the Prepaid 

Customer Fees at $7,566. Knox noted that the low water sales from the vast amount of rain received has attributed 

to the decrease in cash. Knox also noted that after the separation of the two entities RPMWC’s employee costs 

have remained consistent with RPMWC staff completing the majority of company needs. Knox congratulated 

the entire RPMWC staff for their continued hard work. Kariya questioned the costs associated with line item 603, 

Repair and Maintenance. Watkins noted the need for repair on two separate pieces of equipment, the purchase of 

a underground line locator and tools purchased for the utility vehicles. Bandy noted that each utility vehicle has 

undergone a detailed tool inventory to determine the tools needed to complete repairs and maintain the system. 

Watkins noted that line item 618 Legal, does not reflect the May office building matter legal expense as the 

invoice has not been received. Upon a motion by Knox, seconded by Kariya and unanimous vote, the May 

financials were approved as presented. Shinner arrived at 2:33 pm.                                         

 b. 2023 – 2024 Budget Review: Bandy began the discussion by noting that this budget review should be 

considered a workshop to not only discuss the current 2023-2024 budget update but to set the foundation for the 

2024-2025 budget. Watkins presented the budgeted assumptions for the Board to consider. Watkins also provided 

a 2023-2024 budget review outline pointing out key items that would have an impact on the budget. Watkins 

noted that overall, the projection shows under in revenue due to lack of sales during the rainy season and over 

expense in utility payroll due to changes in structure and personnel this fiscal year. The Board further discussed 

the items that would have significant impact on the budget; legal expenses, weather impact on sales, proposed 

groundwater extraction fees from the Upper San Luis Rey Groundwater Management Authority (“USLRGMA”) 

and addressing the needs to recuperate the loss revenue from last fiscal year. Knox suggested the Board consider 

a mid-year rate increase. Mathews questioned the year to date total, Watkins noted that a portion of the June 
expenses were included in the total and noted an adjustment will be made to the report to reflect year to date at 

May 31, 2024. Mathews noted that even with the forecasted water usage for summer the projected year end states 

another loss for this year. Bandy discussed the large agriculture user’s costs and the impacts on the budget. 

Mathews further noted that the Bylaws formally outline the requirement to recover the loss from prior years. 



Rancho Pauma MWC 

Board Meeting Minutes 

June 17, 2024 

 

3 | P a g e  
 

Knox noted that Mathews’ points were well received and that the Board will continue the budget review with 

another draft presentation to be made at the next Board meeting in July. Mathews also discussed the current 

allocation outlined for the minority shareholders and the large agriculture shareholders noting the agriculture 

users should be granted the same monthly allocation as the minority shareholder. Mathews went on to explain 

that circumstances for water use (no longer purchasing import water) have changed from when the large 

agriculture shareholders were granted permission to utilize annual allocations instead of monthly. Knox noted 

that the Board will further review the allocations as well. Bandy will meet with Knox and Watkins early next 

week to further discuss the 2023-2024 budget taking into account the most recent water sales for June and to 

create the foundation for the 2024-2025 budget.                                                                 

6.           RPMWC and PVCSD Update 

 a. Lease Agreement Update: Bandy reported that PVCSD will consider approval of the lease agreement at their 

upcoming Board meeting taking place on Thursday, June 20, 2024. Bandy gave a brief description of the locations 

covered in the lease agreement. Bandy also noted that the proposed monthly rent is set at $2,500 a month with 

an additional back rent due from December 2023 forward. The Board further discussed the lease agreement 

details. Shoaff questioned whether RPMWC’s legal position remains intact if the lease agreement is mutually 

agreed upon. Bandy noted that all rights and obligations will remain in place. Knox questioned how RPMWC 

would like to proceed if the lease agreement is not signed by PVCSD on Thursday, June 20, 2024. Bandy 

suggested that this question be further discussed in the closed session portion of the meeting.                   

 b. Remodel Bids Collected: Watkins has received two separate bids for the former CHP Office Building 

remodel, both bids are within the same dollar amount range. Watkins gave a brief summary of both proposed 

bids noting that she is waiting to receive an amendment to one of the bids for work deemed not necessary. Kariya 

questioned if the electrical panel relocation cost is included in either bid. Watkins noted that she is trying to keep 

the costs low, leaving out the panel relocation cost. Kariya questioned if the contractors presenting the bids have 

been recommended. Watkins noted that both contractors have been highly recommended by multiple individuals 

that have had prior work completed. Shinner suggested Watkins obtain a third bid for comparison. Shinner 

offered to provide contact details for another contractor that may be interested in completing the remodel. Shoaff 

expressed concern with spending money on the remodel without a long-term lease agreement. The Board further 

discussed the proposed work to be performed and the long-term ramifications. Bandy asked Watkins to review 

the needed overall scope of work currently requested and to obtain a third proposal to present to the Board for 

further review.             

 c. CalPERS Reporting Corrections Invoice: Bandy noted that he and Watkins recently received a letter from 

the PVCSD General Manager Steinlicht notifying RPMWC of the recent PVCSD Board approved charges 

associated with PVCSD CalPERS corrections costs. Also included with the letter was an invoice from PVCSD 

and a vague summary of charges from a PVCSD consultant. Watkins reached out to PVCSD requesting additional 

details and was denied by PVCSD personnel. Kariya noted that in recent months PVCSD has stated the CalPERS 

correction costs at multiple dollar amounts. Given this cost discrepancy over time, Kariya further noted that 

RPMWC should have the right to confirm the information requested by Watkins. Shoaff questioned why PVCSD 

decided to complete the review. Knox noted that this issue and expense should be handled solely by PVCSD. 

Knox also noted that when Watkins was assigned to complete PVCSD payroll as a PVCSD employee it was 

completed under the supervision of various PVCSD General Managers. After further Board discussion, Bandy  

asked Watkins to draft a letter to PVCSD requesting further information and the methodology used to determine 

the final outcome.                  

 d. PVCSD Continues to Deposit Checks made Payable to RPMWC: Watkins noted that beginning in 

February several payments made payable to RPMWC have been deposited by PVCSD. Recently a payment was 

hand delivered to the shared office building made payable to RPMWC and cashed by PVCSD. Watkins further 

noted that the shareholder was very upset expressing concern since the check was hand delivered and believed 

they were a victim of fraud and contemplated closing their bank account and establishing a new bank account. 

Shoaff questioned the process for determining if a shareholder’s payment was actually lost in the mail or if cashed 

incorrectly by a third party. Bandy noted that RPMWC administrative staff are not notified by the PVCSD staff 

when the initial occurrence takes place, the administrative staff receive a phone call from an unhappy shareholder 

receiving a finance charge. Shoaff further noted that these continual mistakes made by PVCSD place an unfair 

concern towards RPMWC staff. Shinner questioned if the payments cashed by PVCSD were being credited to 



Rancho Pauma MWC 

Board Meeting Minutes 

June 17, 2024 

 

4 | P a g e  
 

the customer’s PVCSD account. Watkins replied to her knowledge and information noted by the shareholder yes. 

Kariya questioned if PVCSD had addressed the recent issue. Watkins noted she had not received any notification 

from PVCSD regarding this most recent issue. After further discussion, Bandy asked Watkins to send a letter to 

the PVCSD General Manager requesting the written protocol PVCSD follows for payments received and 

separated. Watkins stated that during the month of May there were also mail carrier issues, several shareholders 

noted that their payments and invoices were lost in the mail. Shinner offered the PVCC Post Office Box to 

RPMWC to attempt to alleviate this issue. Watkins lastly noted that due to all the third party interference in 

receiving payments, Alvarado has preemptively reached out to many shareholders to confirm their payment 

status.                                     

7.          Upper San Luis Rey Groundwater Management Authority Update (SGMA Update):  Bandy reported that 

the JPA has mailed out the Public Hearing Notice for the Proposition 218 hearing that will take place in July. 

Bandy noted that this mailer was the first direct contact by the JPA. Bandy further noted that the notice also 

outlines the results of the completed groundwater extraction rate study. Watkins noted that several shareholders 

have shown interest in the notice and reached out to RPMWC with questions. Shinner questioned the associated 

cost breakdown. Bandy noted that the costs associated have been split into two parts: (1) fixed rate per well and 

(2) groundwater extraction fee per acre foot pumped.       

8. Closed Session 

  a. Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 14305(b)(2) – Potential Litigation, 1 case: The Board 

entered into closed session at 3:33 pm.  

9. Open Session 

  a. Action Taken: The Board reconvened to open session at 3:47 pm. The Board will wait to see if the lease 

agreement has been signed by the PVCSD at their upcoming Board meeting scheduled for Thursday, June 20, 2024. 

If the lease agreement has not been signed the Board will schedule a Special Meeting.         

10. Adjournment 

 a. Regular Meeting Date at 2:00 pm – Monday July 15, 2024: Bandy requested that the meeting date for July be 

scheduled for July 22, 2024 at 2:00 pm to determine the outcome of the JPA Public Hearing on July 16, 2024. 

Watkins took a brief moment to inform all in attendance of an SDG&E Planned Power Outage on June 19, 2024. 

Watkins has reached out to all affected shareholders to notify and coordinate with utility staff to protect RPMWC 

equipment during the power outage. With the next meeting date set and no further business to discuss, Bandy 

motioned to adjourn the meeting, motion was seconded by Knox and upon unanimous vote the meeting adjourned 

at 3:50 pm. 

              Kim Alvarado 

Kim Alvarado, Recording Secretary   


